Solicitation No. AHRQ-08-10007 




Amendment 001
This amendment is issued for the following reasons:

1. To respond to questions received by potential offerors (Attachment A - below).

2. To provide an interested vendor/bidders list for subcontracting or teaming opportunities (Attachment B - below).
3. To revise Section H.7 of the RFP (Attachment C - below).

4. To revise Section L.13 of the RFP (Attachment D - below).

5. To revise Section F.3 of the RFP (Attachment E - below).
6. To provide a copy of the DHHS A-76 Competitive Sourcing Green Plan (Attachment F – Excel spreadsheet attached).
7. To revise Section I to include the following two clauses:

52.219-6  Notice of Total Small Business Set-Aside (June 2003) 

(a) Definition. “Small business concern,” as used in this clause, means a concern, including its affiliates that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding on Government contracts, and qualified as a small business under the size standards in this solicitation. 

(b) General. 

(1) Offers are solicited only from small business concerns. Offers received from concerns that are not small business concerns shall be considered non-responsive and will be rejected. 

(2) Any award resulting from this solicitation will be made to a small business concern. 

(c) Agreement. A small business concern submitting an offer in its own name shall furnish, in performing the contract, only end items manufactured or produced by small business concerns in the United States or its outlying areas. If this procurement is processed under simplified acquisition procedures and the total amount of this contract does not exceed $25,000, a small business concern may furnish the product of any domestic firm. This paragraph does not apply to construction or service contracts. 

52.219-14  Limitations on Subcontracting (Dec 1996) 

(a) This clause does not apply to the unrestricted portion of a partial set-aside. 

(b) By submission of an offer and execution of a contract, the Offeror/Contractor agrees that in performance of the contract in the case of a contract for— 

(1) Services (except construction). At least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern. 

(2) Supplies (other than procurement from a nonmanufacturer of such supplies). The concern shall perform work for at least 50 percent of the cost of manufacturing the supplies, not including the cost of materials. 

(3) General construction. The concern will perform at least 15 percent of the cost of the contract, not including the cost of materials, with its own employees. 

(4) Construction by special trade contractors. The concern will perform at least 25 percent of the cost of the contract, not including the cost of materials, with its own employees. 

The date and time set for the receipt of proposals is NOT changed and remains 12:00 p.m. (Noon) EST on Tuesday, September 18, 2007.
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 Attachment A
Amendment 001

1. Pg. 59, Para L.11 (1)  “A list of the last five (5) contracts and subcontracts completed during the past three years and all contracts and subcontracts currently in process……”  AHRQ’s ultimate contract strategy  made this requirement a 100% set-aside for small business concerns  under NAICS Code 541611.  In addition, the Government has allotted 30 points for this factor thereby resulting in a discerned competitive disadvantage for firms meeting this size limitation.  Given AHRQ’s decision and designation of a NAICS code with a size standard of $6.5M, why are 5 past performance references required versus the 3 normally desired of small businesses in this size standard?
It is standard AHRQ policy to request 5 past performance references.  

2. Our experience has been that FOIA requests are not answered in fewer than 45 days which we deem necessary to obtain information needed to develop a winning proposal. Can AHRQ provide us a copy of the DHHS A-76 Competitive Sourcing Green Plan?
Please see the attached Microsoft Excel document.

3. Pg. 9, Para 1   “The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, materials, services, facilities, as necessary for the performance of the work as stated in each individual task order.”  Does the Government intend to provide any work space for the successful offeror?
No – the offeror must have its own space.  Also the reference to a task order is an error – this is not a task order contract.  The statement should read:  The Contractor shall furnish the necessary personnel, materials, services, facilities, as necessary for the performance of the work.

4. Pg. 13, Task 4   “…assist the AHRQ Competitive Sourcing Team in conducting one formal Preliminary Planning Report for the competitive sourcing (study to be determined) in accordance with Attachment B of OMB Circular A-76 Cost Competitions, dated May 29, 2003.”  Should we assume that this statement refers to the CFACT A-76 referenced in the Table on Page 15?

Yes - however the study is still to be determined.

5. Pg. 17, Task 4   “…assist the AHRQ Competitive Sourcing Team in conducting four formal Preliminary Planning Reports for the competitive sourcing (study to be determined) positions in accordance with Attachment B of OMB Circular A-76 Cost Competitions, dated May 29, 2003, using the new Streamlined Cost Comparison with MEO study methodology.”  Should we assume that AHRQ is requesting four (4) additional A-76 studies in Year 3, Option Year 2, of the Contract?

Yes – however the study(s) are still to be determined 

6. Pg. 18, Task 6   “The Contractor shall provide assistance to the Agency during the Phase-in Periods as the organization moves towards implementation of its MEO configurations.  The support will be in the form of technical assistance provided one to two days per week, as requested by the AHRQ Technical Point of Contact.” The lack of specificity of Task 6 makes it difficult to estimate the labor required to fulfill the Government’s requirements.  While we are aware that this is a performance based contract, tasking associated with this task can be handled in a variety of ways.  In view of obvious budget constraints will AHRQ consider bids which identify multiple FTEs and labor categories to fulfill these requirements?

Yes.

7. Pgs. 20-23, Section F neglects to list deliverables for the Base, Option 1 and Option 2 Years for Task 4 Workload Data and System, Roles and Responsibilities of Participants and Task 5 Update A-76 Web Site.  Can we assume that these two exercises result in a report that should become deliverables listed for Option Year 2?

Please see Attachment E – Revised Delivery Schedule.

8. Pg. 30-31  “5.  Review, Recommend, and Update as Approved the AHRQ A-76 Website. (Task 5) 10% for the Base, Option 1 and Option 2 Years.”  Task 5 is weighted as 10 percent of the performance evaluation; however, no deliverables are specified.  Therefore we question how this determination will be made.  Will the Government articulate the objective criteria that will be used to determine the Contractor’s performance in this area?
The contractor’s performance shall be evaluated based upon the Key Performance Standards listed in Attachment 4 – Performance Requirements Summary.

9. Pg. 31  6.  Provide Phase-In Support for AHRQ’s FY 2010 Study. (Task 6) 10%.  Task 6 is weighted as 10 percent of the performance evaluation; however, no deliverables are specified.  Therefore we question how this determination will be made.  Will the Government articulate the objective criteria that will be used to determine the Contractor’s performance in this area?
The contractor’s performance shall be evaluated based upon the Key Performance Standards listed in Attachment 4 of the RFP – Performance Requirements Summary.

10. Pg. 79  b.  Contractor develops a clear, complete and useful communications plan for transmitting information for the FY 08 competition to all relevant parties.  Can we assume that a Communication Plan will become a deliverable in Section F?
Yes – See Attachment E.
11. Re: H.7.3 Performance Evaluation Factors page 30. Re: An evaluation … at the end of the [performance] period.  Pg 32 Maximum deduction for unsatisfactory performance is 15% of incurred cost and Max bonus for outstanding performance is 5%.  The effect of these terms is that the contractor will have 15% of its incurred cost withheld for 12 months plus any potential award fee.  This could effectively cause a small business to access its Line of Credit to pay actual incurred costs withheld by the Government for up to one year.  During that time we would be paying interest that might have a rate of 6-7% but only have potential fee of 5%.  Would the Government consider conducting the Award Fee evaluation on a quarterly basis and releasing the withheld 15% associated with each quarter. 

This requirement has been revised – please see Attachment C.

12. Re: Task 4, for all performance periods.  The last paragraph reads “The Contrator shall see the study through completion…”.  Is the intent for the Contractor to execute the competition actions or to oversee the Government or another contractor executing the competition? 

The Contractor executes the competition actions.

13. Re: page 9, Table last row lists six competitions for the Review task.  Re: page 12, Table last row lists seven competitions which includes the OEREP Grants competition (Task 4) conducted in the base year.  Re: page 15, Table last row lists eight competitions which includes the CFACT competition.  Should the first option period, Task 4, have identified the CFACT competition as workload? 
No because the study would not have concluded yet.

14. The RFP requires that the offers Past Performance be submitted as a separate volume.  However, paragraph L.10 Technical Proposal Instruction a(4) list the Past Performance ((4)E) as part of the Technical Proposal format.  Is Past Performance a part of the Technical proposal or is it a separate volume? 
The Past Performance section should be submitted as a separate volume.

15. Part I, Section 04 calls for an original and 3 copies of Past Performance Information be submitted.  Section L.11 Past Performance Information is submitted with an original and 5 copies.  What is the correct number of copies to submit. 
This was a typo.  Please provide an original and 3 copies of the past performance volume.

16. How is it in the Agency's interest to use a CPFF contract for a service that is well characterized, frequently done and is ideal for placing cost risk on the consultant?  A-76 support is not as risky or unknown as a HHS research project.
The Agency determined that it was in the best interest of the Government to award a cost plus award fee contract.

 

17. A CPFF contract requires a certified cost tracking system that is an additional burden on the true small business and restricts competition when 99% of all A-76 consultant contracts have been fixed price, and there is nothing out of the ordinary in your services sought. Would the agency consider a FFP contract?  Will compliance with FAR Part 30, Part 31, and Part 44 be required?
Please see Question 16.

18. Can we get a definition of what is meant by "QASP implementation system" and a copy of the document?  Is this a reference to FAR part 46? 

Asystem that identifies the methods the government will use to measure the performance of the service provider against the requirements of the PWS (reference OMB A76 Circular). 

19. What does OCKT stand for?

 
The Office of Communications and Knowledge Transfer

20. Total small business set asides normally do not require preparation of a Small Business Subcontracting Plan, especially if a small business contractor has all the resources within the company to furnish the services.  Why is one being required?
This is a typo.  No subcontracting plan is required.

 

21. The RFP under Technical Evaluation Criteria identifies one evaluation factor as "scientific technical merit."  What is meant by this term and how does it apply to this procurement?
Scientific technical merit is referring to all the evaluation criteria factors associated with an offerors technical proposal.

 

22. The evaluation criteria in Section M has not explained how "scientific technical merit" will be evaluated. 
Scientific technical merit is evaluated based upon an offerors response to the four evaluation factors listed in Section M.

 

23. The RFP is not clear on how Past Performance will be evaluated. Please clarify.
Past Performance will be evaluated based upon the Past Performance volume of your proposal and any questionnaires received.

 

24. Why is Facilities and Equipment an evaluation criteria for an A-76 consulting contract?  
The Government needs to be sure the Contractor has the necessary facilities and equipment to perform the work.

 

25. Please provide more details about how the evaluation criteria will be evaluated.

The offerors technical proposal shall be evaluated and scored by a peer review panel based upon the evaluation criteria listed in Section M of the RFP.

 

26. Going with a CPFF contract is going to restrict your competition to only a fraction of the great consultant contractors that are available to provide A-76 support services.  Why not make this a set aside for Service Disabled Veteran Owned small businesses? 
The Government performed extensive market research and determined that this requirement would be a total small business set aside.  However, the Government does reserve the right to make an award based upon the offeors small business designation.  The Government may give preference to an offeror in the competitive range if their small business designation adds to the overall value by helping DHHS/AHRQ meet its historically underutilized small business categories (specifically HUBZone or Service Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses).  See revised Section L.13 – Attachment D.
27. Is there an incumbent service provider? If so, please identify.
Yes – Management Analysis, Inc.

28. What is estimated level of effort for this work (in terms on man-hours/FTE)?
This shall be determined by the offeror based upon the Scope of Work provided in the RFP.

29. Please clarify the type of contract to be awarded (cost plus fixed fee, time & materials, cost reimbursable).

This will be a cost plus award fee contract.
30. Do you anticipate work being performed at the contractor site or government site, or a mix?

All work will be performed at the Contractors site.

31. For past performance, Section A requests original plus three, while Section L requests original plus five. Please clarify requirement
Please see question 15.

32. Section G key personnel are "essential to the work being performed hereunder". Are there specific key personnel requirements/qualifications? Section L requests resumes for key personnel.
Please see the Project Director requirements listed in the Evaluation Criteria under Management and Staffing Plan.

33. Section M identifies past performance as part of technical proposal, while Section L identifies past performance as separate of technical proposal. Please provide clarification.

Please see question 14.
34. Section A indicates that USPS Express Mail does not deliver to the Rockville facility. Does this apply to Federal Express and UPS as well?
No – both FedEx and UPS deliver to AHRQ daily.

35. Task 4 states that the contractor shall assist in completing an A-76 competition by providing support to conduct a study. Does HHS anticipate utilizing contractor support to assist the Contracting Officer in the procurement duties or is this task strictly limited to the functions designated in the existing bullets? 
The Contractor will support the Contracting Officer and the tasks listed under Task 4.

36. Task 4 of Option Year 1 is to perform preliminary planning for a streamlined competition (presumably CFACT), but the list of tasks for this Option Year does not include performing this competition.  Task 1 of Option Year 2 does add the requirement to perform Post Competition Accountability Review of the standup of the CFACT MEO during the year.  This implies that the CFACT competition will be performed late in Option Year 1 or in early in Option Year 2, but this is not required by the Statement of Work.  Please clarify the Government’s intent.

The study is to be determined and the timeframe will be fluid during FY 2009. 

37. Task 4 of Option Year 2 is to perform four new preliminary planning projects, but again the Scope of Work does not specifically require the Offeror to perform the streamlined competitions.  Task 4 of Option Year 2 does state that “The Contractor shall see the study through to completion (including assisting with the opening of the competing bids, preparing documentation for finalization of the study and advising management on correct steps to take for completing the study).”  Please clarify whether developing all of the study products for these four streamlined competitions is a requirement for Option Year 2.
The preparation, support and completion of the studies is the same throughout the option years - the intent is for the Contractor to lead the study and follow through to completion. 
38. Page 31, Paragraph 3 entitled, “Incentive Plan and Performance Evaluation Process” states “The Government anticipates a time-and-material (T&M contract to result from the RFP.”  Section L, Page 54,  Paragraph L.9 a. entitled, “Contract Type and General Provisions” states “It is contemplated that a cost-reimbursement, task order contract will be awarded.” Please clarify.
Please see Question 29.
39. Page 65, Technical Evaluation Criteria states that the evaluation will be against three (3) factors (e.g., scientific technical merit, cost and past performance). Page 66 Evaluation Criteria lists five (5) criteria, excluding price. Do the following criteria (i.e., A. Understanding the Issue/Problem; B. Management and Staffing Plan; C. Corporate Qualifications and Experience; and D. Facilities and Equipment) comprise technical merit?
The fifth criteria that section is referencing is past performance.

40. Page 65, Technical Evaluation Criteria 2nd paragraph states, “In any event, the Government reserves the right to make an award to that offeror whose proposal provides the best value to the Government.” In order to determine best value does HHS anticipate utilizing a “trade-off” source selection process or a low cost technical acceptable source selection process? 
The Government will evaluate all factors in its award decision not only the low cost technically acceptable proposals.  As stated in Section M:  All evaluation factors, other than cost or price, when combined are significantly more important than cost or price.  However, cost/price may become a critical factor in source selection in the event that two or more offerors are determined to be essentially equal following the evaluation of all factors other than cost or price.  In any event, the Government reserves the right to make an award to that offeror whose proposal provides the best overall value to the Government.

41. The timeframe of Year 1 appears to overlap with AHRQ’s existing contract for similar services, with Management Analysis, Incorporated (MAI).  Please clarify how the winner of this contract will interface with MAI between November 15, 2007 (award of this contract) and January 31, 2008 (expiration of the MAI contract).
The overlap time will be used as a transition period between the incumbent and the successful offeror. 

42. The Statement of Work appears to omit the validation study required under the “Validating the Results of Public-Private Competition“ memo from OMB Director Clay Johnson (dated April 13, 2007) and the quarterly savings report data entry now required for updating the new OMB database.  Should either of these be added to the Statement of Work?
The contractor would be expected to assist and provide data with all reports required by OMB (as listed in the Post-Competition Accountability Reviews tables on pgs 9, 12, 15) including cost-savings reports (quarterly) and any other reports required by OMB. 

43. The number of positions in the Office of Communication and Knowledge Transfer for which Post Competition Accountability Review is required is listed as 33 positions.  This may be old data; please provide the size of the approved MEO being implemented for the OCKT.  This will impact on the number of hours required to perform the PCA Reviews.

There are 33 positions in the OCKT MEO.

44. Section C, page 9, Task 2 begins with "the contractor shall utilize the process developed previously for FY07 FAIR Act Inventory to...."  We are not familiar with the “previously developed process”, therefore this will provide the incumbent an unfair advantage in addressing the specific task.   Can this task not address pre-developed processes that all parties may not be privy to, or can we be made privy to this specific task that was previously developed? 
The contractor will use the HHS previously developed process to prepare the annual Fair Act Inventory. Additional detailed information on this process will be provided to the successful offeror. 
45. Please confirm that the place of performance is primarily at the contractor location.

Yes, that is correct.

46. Paragraph B.2.b states “fixed fee”, but paragraph H.7.3 states “the Government anticipates a time-and-materials (T&M) contract to result from this RFP.” Paragraph L.4 states that “the Government contemplates award of a cost reimbursement, performance-based type contract resulting from this solicitation.” Please clarify.
Please see Question 29.
47. Paragraph B.4.a.(10) states there will be no consultant fees in excess of $800/day. Please clarify that this is per consultant vice collectively.
Yes, this limitation is per consultant.

48. Paragraph G.1 addresses Key Personnel, but no Key Positions are specified. Reference to Section I does not indicate which positions the Government considers Key. Please provide clarification as to which positions, if any, the Government considers to be “Key”.
We generally list Project Director and/or Project Manager as Key Personnel.  Section G.1 will be filled in at the time of contract award.  For your information the HHSAR clause referencing Key Personnel is listed below:

KEY PERSONNEL (APR 1984) (HHSAR 352.270-5) 

The personnel specified in this contract are considered to be essential to the work being performed hereunder.  Prior to diverting any of the specified individuals to other programs, the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer reasonably in advance and shall submit justification (including proposed substitutions) in sufficient detail to permit evaluation of the impact on the program.  No diversion shall be made by the Contractor without the written consent of the Contracting Officer; provided, that the Contracting Officer may ratify in writing such diversion and such ratification shall constitute the consent of the Contracting Officer required by this clause.  The contract may be amended from time to time during the course of the contract to either add or delete personnel, as appropriate.

49. Paragraph L.10.a states that “technical proposals shall not merely paraphrase the requirements of the Agency’s scope of work…or use of phrases such as “will comply” or “standard techniques will be employed”. Many of the proposal requirements are by their nature simply compliance, i.e. “the contractor agrees to consult with the Project and Contracting Officers regarding the proposed release or use [of data]. Is it permissible to state that the contractor assumes all compliance-type items are agreed to unless otherwise stated in Exceptions to This Solicitation”?
The proposals will be evaluated by a peer review panel therefore the offeror should provide as much detail to describe how compliance will be carried out.  An offeror should expand as much as possible to allow for adequate evaluation.

50. Section C, Paragraph B, Task 1 (page 9) illustrates 6 small MEO’s to be evaluated in 2008. The paragraph states that the “initial product” for Task 1…shall be in April”. Does this mean the reviews will be conducted prior to April, with the first draft of the proposal due in April, or that the reviews themselves will be start in April and run through September?
The draft is due in April. 
51. Section C, ParagraphB, Task 1 (page 9) states that the “contractor shall perform semi-annual performance reviews”, but the Delivery Schedule provided in Section F, para F.3 (page 20) illustrates only one set of reviews in 2007/8. Additionally, the descriptions in the table refer to submission of an “Annual Report”. Please clarify whether the Government requires one Unit review annually or two, and if two, please provide further guidance in the table of deliverables.

Semi-annual performance reviews will be required on all reviews listed in the table on pg. 9.  Two post-competition accountability reviews are required (April and Oct) - the Oct review includes data from April - October and a summary of the entire year. 

52. Is there an incumbent contractor for Tasks 1, 2, or 5?  If so who was the contractor? 
Please see Question No. 27

53. Will the PWS and QASP of the studies in post competition be made available to the bidders prior to submission so that they may be examined for consideration in developing the bidder’s proposal?

No.

54. Please reference the following in the A-76 RFP document:
a. Page 31, Section 3., Incentive Plan and Performance Evaluation Process states the contract will be T&M 

b. Page 1, 3rd paragraph, “… A cost reimbursement, performance-based contract is contemplated…” 

c. Page 6, Section B.2.d, table requests “Estimated Cost” 

d. Page 35, Section I “General Clauses for a Cost-Plus-Fixed-Fee Contract” 

e. Page 53, Section L.4 “Type of Contract” 

Is it correct to assume that in all respects this is a cost plus contract with award fee, and that the reference for item “a” on page 31 does not apply?

Yes – Please see Question 29.

55. Page 32, Section H.7, Performance Evaluation Factors, will the potential Plus/Minus Award fee percentages be applied to just to the contractors costs, and not include the fixed fee portion of the contractor’s CPFF? 
The incentive/award fees are separate and do not include the fixed fee portion of the contract award.

56. Are the potential Plus/Minus Award fee percentages to be applied to the value of the task areas/performance factors individually or are they to be totaled and applied to the value of the total cost incurred for the period?

They are applied to the task areas/performance factors individually.

57. Top of Page 8, Section C, “…as stated in each individual task order…” could be interpreted to mean there may be multiple task orders issued in any given period. Will AHRQ provide an estimate to the scope and number of the task order(s) that are expected to be issued per period under this contract?

Please see Question 3.

58. Page 1, paragraph 4 states the “Government anticipates to award 1 contract from this solicitation”. Page 53, Section L.5 states that “Government may elect to award … multiple contracts for the same or similar supplies or services to two or more sources under this solicitation.” To clarify, how many awards will be awarded under this solicitation?

The Government intends to award 1 contract from this solicitation.

59. Page 32, “…The Government will withhold 15% of the payment for the contractor’s invoices…”.  The contractor understands that the invoice will include direct labor, fringe, overhead, G&A, and a proposed fee, but will not include the Award fee.  Does the reference on page 32 imply that the invoice payment will then be reduced by 15%, irrespective of the Award fee?  We understand that the Award fee will be calculated and paid on an annual basis, when will withheld 15% be paid?
Please see Question 11.
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 Attachment B
Amendment 001

Interested Vendors/Bidders List

Addx Corporation

4900 Seminary Road 

Suite 570

Alexandria, VA 22311

POC: Donna Propst

Belle Enterprise & Technology, Inc. (BET)

69723 Camino Pacifico

Rancho Mirage, CA 92270

POC: Mariann Meeks

Federal Acquisition Resources, Inc.

20677 Muddy Harbor Square

Potomac Falls, VA 20165

POC: Frank O’Donnell

Lincoln Insight, Inc.

2133 Hilltop Place

Falls Church, VA 22043

POC: Ann Benson

Wright Solutions, Inc.

7833 Walker Drive

Suite 630

Greenbelt, MD 20770

POC: Anthony Roberts
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 Attachment C
Amendment 001

Please replace Section H.7 of the RFP with the following:

H.7  
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FACTORS (revised)
The Government will evaluate the following factors of the Contractor’s performance:

Base Period  (9/30/07-9/29/08)

	Performance Factor
	Related SOW Tasks
	Weight

	1.  Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	Task 1
	30%

	2.  Provide FY 2008 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	Task 2
	20%

	3.  Provide Progress Reports.
	Task 3
	10%

	4.  Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ’s FY 08 Objectives.
	Task 4
	30%

	5.  Review, Recommend, and Update as Approved the AHRQ A-76 Website.
	Task 5
	10%


Option Period 1 (9/30/08-9/29/09)
	Performance Factor
	Related SOW Tasks
	Weight

	1.  Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	Task 1
	30%

	2.  Provide FY 2009 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	Task 2
	20%

	3.  Provide Progress Reports.
	Task 3
	10%

	4.  Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ’s FY 09 Objectives.
	Task 4
	30%

	5.  Review, Recommend, and Update as Approved the AHRQ A-76 Website.
	Task 5
	10%


Option Period  2 (9/30/09-9/29/10)
	Performance Factor
	Related SOW Tasks
	Weight

	1.  Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	Task 1
	20%

	2.  Provide FY 2009 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	Task 2
	20%

	3.  Provide Progress Reports.
	Task 3
	10%

	4.  Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ’s FY 10 Objectives.


	Task 4
	30%

	5.  Review, Recommend, and Update as Approved the AHRQ A-76 Website.
	Task 5
	10%

	6.  Provide Phase-In Support for AHRQ’s FY 2010 Study.
	Task 6
	10%


2.
Performance Requirements Summary

Attachment 4 summarizes the performance standards and Government surveillance methods for each performance factor for the base period including Option Period 1 and Option Period 2 (if exercised).
3.
Incentive Plan and Performance Evaluation Process
(Note to Offerors: The Government anticipates a Cost-Plus-Award Fee (CPAF) contract to result from this solicitation. In this type of contract, the Contractor will receive a small base fee. In addition to the base fee, award fee will be tied to the evaluation of specific products and services in accordance with Attachment 4- Performance Requirements Summary.

The Agency’s decision to pay or not to pay Award Fee in no way alters the Contractor’s responsibilities to perform any services or produce any deliverables required by this contract. The Agency’s decision to pay or not to pay Award Fee in no way alters the Agency’s obligation to pay the Contractor for satisfactory deliverables in accordance with this contract. 

Award Fee is available for services and products identified below.

Annual Amounts Available for Award Fee (to be evaluated annually):

Base Period

	Performance Evaluation Factor
	% of Award Fee Pool

 
	Award for Evaluation Unacceptable

Rating score of below 60 reduces Base Fee by 50% for rating period.
	Award for Evaluation

Satisfactory 
60-79 score

40%
	Award for

Evaluation

Exceeds Expectations
80-89 score

80%


	Award for

Evaluation Outstanding
90-100 score

100%



	Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	30%
	
	
	
	

	Provide FY 2008 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	20%
	
	
	
	

	Provide Progress Reports.
	10%
	
	
	
	

	Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ FY 08 Objectives.
	30%
	
	
	
	

	Review, Recommend, and Update, as Approved, AHRQ A-76 Website.
	10%
	
	
	
	


Option Period 1
	Performance Evaluation Factor
	% of Award Fee Pool

 
	Award for Evaluation Unacceptable

Rating score of below 60 reduces Base Fee by 50% for rating period.
	Award for Evaluation

Satisfactory 
60-79 score

40%
	Award for

Evaluation

Exceeds Expectations
80-89 score

80%


	Award for

Evaluation Outstanding
90-100 score

100%



	Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	30%
	
	
	
	

	Provide FY 2009 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	20%
	
	
	
	

	Provide Progress Reports.
	10%
	
	
	
	

	Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ FY 09 Objectives.
	30%
	
	
	
	

	Review, Recommend, and Update, as Approved, AHRQ A-76 Website.
	10%
	
	
	
	


Option Period 2
	Performance Evaluation Factor
	% of Award Fee Pool

 
	Award for Evaluation Unacceptable

Rating score of below 60 reduces Base Fee by 50% for rating period.
	Award for Evaluation

Satisfactory 
60-79 score

40%
	Award for

Evaluation

Exceeds Expectations
80-89 score

80%


	Award for

Evaluation Outstanding
90-100 score

100%



	Conduct Post-Competition Reviews on a Semi-Annual Basis of each Completed A-76 Competition.
	20%
	
	
	
	

	Provide FY 2010 FAIR Act Inventory Assistance.
	20%
	
	
	
	

	Provide Progress Reports.
	10%
	
	
	
	

	Assist Competitive Sourcing Team in Conducting an A-76 Competition for AHRQ FY 10 Objectives.
	30%
	
	
	
	

	Review, Recommend, and Update, as Approved, AHRQ A-76 Website.
	10%
	
	
	
	

	Provide Phase-In Support for AHRQ’s FY 2010 Study.
	10%
	
	
	
	


At the end of the base period and each of the option periods, the Contractor’s products and services will be evaluated in terms of the above performance factors by a Performance Evaluation Group (PEG). The PEG will consist of the Project Officer, the Contracting Officer, and, as appropriate, other Government officials recommended by the Project Officer and approved by the Contracting Officer.
Each member of the Award Fee Evaluation Group will evaluate the Contractor’s performance against the performance standards of quality and timeliness listed in Attachment 4. 

A numerical rating scale of 0 to 100 will be used in the evaluation. The scale is defined as follows:

	Definition of Rating
	Adjective Rating
	Numerical Rating
	Fee %

	Outstanding-  Contractor’s performance exceeds standards by substantial margin; the performance monitor can cite few areas for improvement, all of which are minor. Required rework is minimal.
	Outstanding
	90 - 100
	100%

	Exceeds Expectations-  Contractor’s performance exceeds standards, and although there may be several areas for improvement, these are more than offset by better performance in other areas. Required rework is limited.
	Exceeds Expectations


	80 – 89


	80%



	Satisfactory-  Contractor’s performance is generally satisfactory, and areas for improvement are approximately offset by better performance in other areas. Required rework is moderate. 
	Satisfactory


	60 – 79


	40%



	Unacceptable-  Contractor’s performance is less than standards by a substantial margin, and the performance monitor can cite many areas for improvement which are not offset by better performance in other areas.  Required rework is extensive. 
	Unacceptable
	Below 60
	Base Fee Reduced by 50%


Each member of the AFEG will give each performance factor a numerical rating, and those ratings will be averaged. An average score of less than 60 (Unacceptable) will result in a reduction in the base fee of 50% for the performance factor for the rating period.  An average score of 60-79 (Satisfactory) will result in award of 40% of the Award Fee for the performance factor. An average score of 80-89 (Exceeds Expectations) will result in award of 80% of the Award Fee, and an average of 90-100 (Outstanding) will result in award of 100% of the Award Fee for the performance factor. The Award Fee determinations are not subject to the disputes clause.
Sol. No. AHRQ-08-10001






 Attachment D
Amendment 001
Please replace Section L.13 of the RFP with the following:

L.13
SELECTION OF OFFERORS (revised)


a.
The acceptability of the technical portion of each contract proposal will be evaluated by the technical review committee.  The committee will evaluate each proposal in strict conformity with the evaluation criteria of the RFP, utilizing point scores and written critiques.  The committee may suggest that the Contracting Officer request clarifying information from an offeror.



b.
The business portion of each contract proposal will be subjected to a limited cost review, management analysis, etc.



c.
 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1Past performance of the technically acceptable offerors will be evaluated by AHRQ staff.  A competitive range will be determined.  Oral or written discussions will be conducted with all offerors in the competitive range, if necessary.  All aspects of the proposals are subject to discussions, including cost, technical approach, past performance and contractual terms and conditions.  Final Proposal Revisions will be requested with the reservation of the right to conduct limited negotiations after submission of the Final Proposal Revisions.

d.
A final best-buy analysis will be performed taking into consideration the results of the technical evaluation, cost analysis, past performance, and ability to complete the work within the Government’s required schedule.  The Government reserves the right to make an award to the best advantage of the Government, technical merit, cost, past performance, and other factors considered.
e.
The Government reserves the right to make an award based upon the offeors small business designation.  The Government may give preference to an offeror in the competitive range if their small business designation adds to the overall value by helping DHHS/AHRQ meet its historically underutilized small business categories (specifically HUBZone or Service Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses).

f.
The Government reserves the right to make a single award, multiple awards, or no award at all to the RFP. 
Sol. No. AHRQ-08-10001






 Attachment E
Amendment 001

Please replace Section F.3 of the RFP with the following:

F.3
DELIVERY SCHEDULE (revised) 
The items specified for delivery below are subject to the review and approval of the Project Officer before final acceptance.  The contractor shall be required to make revisions deemed necessary by the Project Officer.

The contractor shall submit the following scheduled reports to the Government Project Officer, AHRQ, 540 Gaither Road, Rockville, Maryland 20850, in the quantities and within the time frame indicated.
Base Period Requirements (11/1/07-10/31/08)

	Item
	Task Reference
	Description
	Due Date

	No. 1
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Conduct performance review and submit mid-year report
	April 1, 2008 

	No.  2
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit draft annual report
	September 1, 2008

	No.  3
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit second draft annual report
	September 15, 2008

	No. 4
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit final annual report
	September 29, 2008

	No. 5
	Task 1 (OMB Cost Savings Report
	Submit cost savings report
	Due Date Determined by HHS (October 2008)

	No.  6
	Task 2 (Fair Act Inventory)
	Submit draft inventory
	Thirty days before HHS Deadline (usually April 28th)

	No.  7
	Task 2 (Fair Act Inventory)
	Submit final inventory
	Ten days before HHS Deadline (usually April 28th)

	No.  8
	Task 3 
	Progress Reports
	Submit monthly to Project Officer

	No. 9
	Task 4 (FTE Analysis)
	Complete initial round of interviews with Sr. Management to identify number of OEREP and contractor staff proposed to be studied
	Submit to Project Officer no later than 1 Feb 2008

	No. 10
	Task 4 (Market Research)
	Conduct preliminary market research
	Completed no later than 28 Feb 2008

	No. 11
	Task 4 (Workload Data & Systems)
	Assess workload systems to ensure requirements
	Completed no later than 1 March 2008

	No. 12
	Task 4 (Baseline Costs)
	Identify activity’s baseline cost
	Notify Project Officer no later than 20 March 2008

	No. 13
	Task 4 (Confirmation Statement)
	Prepare confirmation statement
	Submit to Project Officer no later than 30 April 2008


Deliverable Schedule (Option Year 1) (11/01/08-10/31/09)
	Item
	Task Reference
	Description
	Due Date

	No. 1
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Conduct performance review and submit mid-year report
	April 1, 2009 

	No. 2
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit draft annual report
	September 1, 2009

	No. 3
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit second draft annual report
	September 15, 2009

	No. 4
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit final annual report
	September 29, 2009

	No. 5
	Task 1 (OMB Cost Savings Report
	Submit cost savings report
	Due Date Determined by HHS (October 2009)

	No. 6
	Task 2 (FTE Analysis)
	Complete initial round of interviews with Sr. Management to identify staff proposed to be studied.
	Submit to Project officer no later than 1 Feb 2009

	No. 7
	Task 4 (FTE Analysis)
	Submit Communications Plan
	Submit to Project officer no later than 15 Feb 2009

	No. 8
	Task 2 (Market Research)
	Conduct preliminary market research
	Completed no later than 28 Feb 2009

	No. 9
	Task 4 (Workload Data & Systems)
	Assess workload systems to ensure requirements
	Completed no later than 1 March 2009

	No. 10
	Task 2 (Baseline Costs)
	Identify activity's baseline cost
	Notify Project officer no later than 20 March 2009

	No. 11
	Task 2 (Confirmation Statement)
	Prepare confirmation statement
	Submit to Project Officer no later than 30 April 2009


Deliverable Schedule (Option Year 2) (11/01/09-10/30/10)

	Item
	Task Reference
	Description
	Due Date

	No. 1
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Conduct performance review and submit mid-year report
	April 1, 2010 

	No. 2
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit draft annual report
	September 1, 2010

	No. 3
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit second draft annual report
	September 15, 2010

	No. 4
	Task 1 (Post Competition Accountability Reviews)
	Submit final annual report
	September 29, 2010

	No. 5
	Task 1 (OMB Cost Savings Report
	Submit cost savings report
	Due Date Determined by HHS (April 2010)

	No. 6
	Task 2 (FTE Analysis)
	Complete initial round of interviews with Sr. Management to identify staff proposed to be studied.
	Submit to Project officer no later than 1 Feb 2010

	No. 7
	Task 4 (FTE Analysis)
	Submit Communications Plan
	Submit to Project officer no later than 15 Feb 2010

	No. 8
	Task 2 (Market Research)
	Conduct preliminary market research
	Completed no later than 28 Feb 2010

	No. 9
	Task 4 (Workload Data & Systems)
	Assess workload systems to ensure requirements
	Completed no later than 1 March 2010

	No. 10
	Task 2 (Baseline Costs)
	Identify activity's baseline cost
	Notify Project officer no later than 20 March 2010

	No. 11
	Task 2 (Confirmation Statement)
	Prepare confirmation statement
	Submit to Project Officer no later than 30 April 2010


One copy of monthly progress reports shall be submitted to the Contracting Officer by email at Jessica.Alderton@ahrq.hhs.gov.

